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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 

 
PROJECT:  ITB 22-55-001 - Guyton Fire Station #13 - Construction 

 

CONTACT:  Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

   912-754-2159 abruton@effinghamcounty.org 

        

DATE ISSUED: March 24, 2022  

 

 

ITB 22-55-001 - Guyton Fire Station #13 - Construction is hereby amended as noted herein: 

BIDDER TO ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF ADDENDUM BY SIGNING ON THE 

SIGNATURE LINE BELOW AND INCLUDING A COPY WITH SUBMITTED BID.  

FAILURE TO DO SO MAY, AT THE OWNER’S DISCRETION, SUBJECT THE BIDDER TO 

DISQUALIFICATION 

 

1) QUESTION: After speaking with my distributors for products, It appears that both the 

Ceramic Tile and Carpet Tile specified for this project have been discontinued. 

Could we get an alternate selection for these items? 

ANSWER:   Ceramic tile: Daltile, Volume 1.0, glazed porcelain, Carpet: Shaw Contract, 

Brightwork 

 

2) QUESTION: Also Armstrong wall base has been specified. Would Roppe or Johnsonite 

be viable substitutions? 

ANSWER:   Yes Roppe and Johnsonite will be acceptable 

 

3) QUESTION: While reviewing the documents I noticed the Division 27 - 

Telecommunications/ Communications Cabling does not appear on the Specs and the 

Drawings. Has this design been finalized by Effingham Co IT, if so, will it be included in 

this Project’s Scope of Work? 

ANSWER:   In addition to what is on the plans the contractor shall provide a 2” 

underground conduit from the data closet, to the right side of the building where the 

power is shown.  Contractor to provide 3 additional data drops, location provided in the 

field. The County will provide data wire, terminations and all network equipment 

 

4) QUESTION: Is the job site staked out? Are there corner markers on-site? 

ANSWER:   The full site is not staked out, but there are corner markers.  

 

5) QUESTION: Please advise if they can take MASA's Extrudeck for canopy pricing? 

ANSWER:   Yes, that seems appropriate. 

 

6) QUESTION: Is there a Geo Technical Report for this project? 

ANSWER:   yes, Attached 

 

7) QUESTION: [Ref Dwg: A1.2] A 4’ wall is called out to extend above the storage room 

floor. Will a 4’ wall need to be installed on the North End of the Storage Room as well? 

ANSWER:   No 
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8) QUESTION: [Ref Dwg: A1.2] Would you like the horizontally run 2x8 floor joists to 

run the full extent of the hallway, North and South, for the gyp board ceiling to take too? 

The current drawing illustrates more or less a platform bridging both sides of the storage 

room. 

ANSWER:   yes, the second floor platform shall be continuous over the entire living 

quarters.  

 

9) QUESTION: Do you happen to have a physical address beyond it being on HWY 119 in 

Guyton? 

ANSWER:   Not yet 

 

10) QUESTION: Please clarify as to whom the responsibility of the tap fee and permit fee 

falls on, General Contractor or Owner? 

ANSWER:   Contractor shall pull permit, owner to waive fees 

 

11) QUESTION: Please clarify as to whom the responsibility of special inspections / testing 

falls on, General Contractor or Owner? 

ANSWER:   Contractor to Coordinate testing, Contractor shall provide testing schedule 

to architect for approval, Owner shall pay for testing 

 

12) QUESTION: Will there be an updated bid form specific to the length of contract 

(currently 240 days) to reflect the longer than usual lead times of PEMB fabrication and 

shipment to site? 

ANSWER:   Yes 

 

13) QUESTION: On the plans, it states that the framing is to be wood framing on all pages 

that I see, except for page A3.4 where it mentions 8” metal framing under the windows. 

Please elaborate if the metal framing is only under the windows, or where all it may be. 

ANSWER:  All wood framing except for the PEMB components   

 

14) QUESTION: Have the plans been submitted to GDOT yet for their permit? If not, will 

the GC need to carry that responsibility and fee? 

ANSWER:    Plans were submitted and approved by GDOT.  Contractor must call area 

inspector to activate the permit. 

 

15) QUESTION: The plans say there was a Geo tech report done. Can you send that to us? 

Are any unsuitable soils expected? If yes, we would like to suggest a unit price for 

removing and replacing unsuitable soil on the bid form. 

ANSWER:   See Attached 

 

16) QUESTION: Is the furniture being bought and installed by the owner? (tables, beds, etc) 

ANSWER:   Yes 

 

17) QUESTION: I am seeking clarification if we are we to paint the metal beams in the App 

bay? 

ANSWER:   No 
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18) QUESTION: On the appliances, there are no specifications that I have seen in the bid 

documents. 

-The plans Sheet A1.1 indicate the washer, dryer, range and fridge are NIC. is the GC to 

install these? No 

-What about the range hood? Please provide a spec for it if it is GC furnished and 

installed. Called out on M2.1 

-What about the ice machine in the truck bay?  Please provide a spec for it if it is GC 

furnished and installed. 

ANSWER:   Owner furnished owner installed 

 

19) QUESTION: On the interior signage allowance of $1,500.00. 

       -Does the 1,500.00 need to be included in our bid price? Yes 

-Does the 1,500.00 cover furnish and install or should we add installation? Furnish and 

install 

-What about exterior signage? There is no spec for exterior detailing what material is 

desired for the lettering, logo and numerals.  

ANSWER:   SEE SHEET A3.3   ½” thick acrylic letters 

 

20) QUESTION: The structural drawings have this structure listed as Risk Category IV 

(Essential Facility, 150 MPH wind rating). However, the specifications for the windows 

do not meet this building criteria as written. Shouldn't the windows be impact resistant 

and able to withstand large missile impact according to the Builders Code for this type of 

structure? 

ANSWER:   Windows as Specified 

 

21) QUESTION: Can other brick manufacturers (Cherokee) be used as an alternative to 

"triangle" brick if they have a similar color?  

ANSWER:   Yes – Owner must approve 

 

22) QUESTION: Flooring suppliers have said the carpet tile and ceramic tile are 

discontinued from the manufacturer. Can you make another selection or provide a square 

foot allowance for the material? 

ANSWER:   See Above 

 

23) QUESTION: On the door hardware, 

-Is doormakaba acceptable for the closers and door control devices, electric strikes, exit 

devices? Yes 

- Is Rockwood Holders acceptable for the overhead door holders? Provide submittal for 

approval 

- Is Pemko acceptable for the thresholds and door seals/gasketing? Yes 

- What is the desired finish for the door hardware? Some items reference bronze and 

some do not. Stainless Steel Finish 

- Is 613 Dark Oxidized Satin Bronze, Oil Rubbed Bronze acceptable in lieu of 615 

Oxidized Satin Bronze, relieved, Waxed? Stainless Steel Finish 

ANSWER:    

 

24) QUESTION: The notes on the structural drawings state the owner will pay for testing but 

the GC will select the independent testing agency. Please clarify who will hire and 

compensate the testing company? 

ANSWER:   Contractor to Coordinate testing, Contractor shall provide testing schedule 



Addendum No.2 

ITB 22-55-001 - Guyton Fire Station #13 - Construction 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

4 

 

to architect for approval, Owner shall pay for testing Owner has been using Whitaker 

labs 

 

25) QUESTION: Have the plans been submitted the AHJ? It was mentioned in the pre bid 

that the owner would waive permit fee's but please confirm. 

ANSWER:   Contractor to submit for permit, owner to waive fees 

 

26) QUESTION: Is closet shelving to be included in Room 3? If yes, please provide what is 

desired here.   

ANSWER:   Contractor to provide and install three - ½” fir plywood shelves with 1x2 

solid wood nosing painted, on ledgers 

 

27) QUESTION: Is FS Industries and approved manufacturer for the Ships Ladder? 

ANSWER:   Yes 

 

28) QUESTION: Written specifications were not included for any of the civil/site work. 

Please confirm there are no written specifications and only what is on the plans. 

ANSWER:   Civil Specifications per Effingham County Typical Specifications found on 

the county web site - https://www.effinghamcounty.org/243/Forms-Links 

 

29) QUESTION: Are bid price modifications allowed on the outside of the envelope? 

ANSWER:   No 

 

30) QUESTION: Are self-proposed VE options and clarifications allowed on a separate 

piece of paper inside the bid envelope? 

ANSWER:   Yes 

 

31) QUESTION: Is the article 5.01 (sheet 01250-3 in the ITB) required to be turned in as the 

bid form? It does not follow a standard CSI division schedule of values (1. general 

conditions, 2. site work, 3. concrete, 4. masonry etc...) 

ANSWER:   Yes 

 

32) QUESTION: Are subcontractor E verify due at time of bid or before a contract can be 

executed? Generally, subcontractors will not submit this e verify with their bid. 

ANSWER:   E-Verify after low bid confirmation, prior to contract 

 

33) QUESTION: Do we have an expected date of when the selection will be made? This 

could help us cover any price escalations up front in our bid if we know how long from 

time of bid to official award. 

ANSWER:   Approximately 30 days  
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All other terms and conditions in ITB 22-55-001 remain unchanged. 

 

Effingham County reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any 

technicalities or irregularities and to award the offer based upon the most responsive, 

responsible submission. 
 

Please sign receipt of this Addendum No. 2 below: 

 

 

 

____________________________      ____________________________     _________ 

Print Name                                            Signature                                              Date 

 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 2 
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BID FORM 

ARTICLE 1 - BID RECIPIENT 

1.01  This Bid is submitted to: 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners 

1.02 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with Owner 

in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bidding 

Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms 

and conditions of the Bidding Documents. 

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation 

those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 60 days 

after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of 

Owner. 

ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS 

3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that: 

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, other related data identified in the 

Bidding Documents, and the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged: 

Addendum No.  Addendum Date 

             

             

             

 

B. Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site 

conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and 

performance of the Work. 

 

D. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder; information commonly known to contractors 

doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; 

and the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents 

on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, 

and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder, including applying the specific means, 

methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required by the Bidding 

Documents; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs. 

 

E. Based on the information and observations referred to in Paragraph 3.01.D above, Bidder does not 

consider that further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for 

the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price(s) bid and within the times 

required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents. 
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F. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates 

to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents. 

 

G. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder 

has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable 

to Bidder. 

 

H. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and 

conditions for the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted. 

 

ARTICLE 4 -  BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION 

 
4.01 Bidder certifies that: 

  

A. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity 

and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group, association, 

organization, or corporation; 

 

B. Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; 

 

C. Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and  

 

D. Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for the 

Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D: 

 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value likely to 

influence the action of a public official in the bidding process; 

 

2.“fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding 

process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 

to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or   without 

the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; 

and 

 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their 

property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract. 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 
 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents an 

amount in current funds equal to the sum of the amounts determined pursuant to Paragraphs 5.01.A, below: 
 

For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for each separately identified 

item of Unit Price Work times the actual quantity of that item: 
 

 

 

 

Proposed PEMB Lead Time: ______________________ 

 

 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Item No. Description Unit
Estimated 

Quantity
Bid Unit Price Bid Price

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $ $

2 CLEARING LS 1 $ $

3 SITE GRADING LS 1 $ $

4 EROSION CONTROL LS 1 $ $

5 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY LS 1 $ $

6 WATER SYSTEM, COMPLETE LS 1 $ $

7 CONCRETE SIDEWALKS LS 1 $ $

8 ASPHALT PAVEMENT, COMPLETE LS 1 $ $

9 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $ $

10

PRE-ENGINEERING METAL BUILDING – 

PROCUREMENT AND INSTALLATON (INCLUDING 

ROOFING AND SIDING) 

LS 1 $ $

11 BUILDING FOUNDATIONS&SLAB, COMPLETE LS 1 $ $

12 HVAC/MECHANICAL SYSTEMS, COMPLETE LS 1 $ $

13 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS, COMPLETE LS 1 $ $

14 ARCHITECTURAL FINISHES, COMPLETE LS 1 $ $

$

Guyton Fire Station #13 - Construction – Highway 119

Total Bid– Guyton Fire Station #13 - Construction
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ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION 

6.01 Bidder agrees to commence work within ten (10) days after the Notice to Proceed is issued and to complete 

all Work within 240 days after the Notice to Proceed is issued. 

6.02  Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages. 

ARTICLE 7 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID 

7.01 The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid: 

A. Required Bid security in the form of_______________________________________; 

B. Evidence of authority to do business in the state of the Project;  

C. Drug Free Workplace Certification (Attachment A); 

D. Promise of Non Discrimination Statement (Attachment B); 

E. Disclosure of Responsibility Statement - Bidders Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 

Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion (Attachment C); 

F. Non Collusion Affidavit - (Attachment D); 

G. Contractor Affidavit and Agreement (E-VERIFY) (Attachment E); 

H. Subcontractor Affidavit if applicable (E-VERIFY) (Attachment F); 

 

I.  List of Proposed Subcontractors (Attachment H); 

 

ARTICLE 8 - DEFINED TERMS 

8.01 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions to Bidders, 

the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions. 

 

ARTICLE 9 - BID SUBMITTAL 

9.01 This Bid is submitted by: 

If Bidder is: 

 

An Individual 

 

Name (typed or printed):         

 

By:            

(Individual’s signature) 

 

Doing business as:         
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A Partnership 

 

Partnership Name:          

 

By:            

(Signature of general partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign) 

 

Name (typed or printed):         

 

A Corporation 

 

Corporation Name:          (SEAL) 

 

State of Incorporation:       

Type (General Business, Professional, Service, Limited Liability):_______ 

 

By:            

(Signature -- attach evidence of authority to sign) 

 

Name (typed or printed):         

 

 

Title:            

 (CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

Attest            

 

Date of Qualification to do business in   Georgia   is ____/____/____. 

 

A Joint Venture 

 

Name of Joint Venture:         

 

First Joint Venturer Name:         (SEAL) 

 

 

By:            

(Signature of first joint venture partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign) 

 

Name (typed or printed):         

 

Title:            

 

Second Joint Venturer Name:       (SEAL) 

 

By:            

(Signature of second joint venture partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign) 

 

Name (typed or printed):        
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Title:            

 

(Each joint venturer must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership, and 

corporation that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.) 

 

 

Bidder's Business Address           

 

             

 

Phone No. _____________________________________ Fax No.      

 

E-mail ______________________________      _______ 

 

SUBMITTED on     , 20____. 

 

State Contractor License No.     . 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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